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recording. The CHS told MARTINEZ that he had gotten a call from the UC after he hung up with 

MARTINEZ, aod the UC said he did not want to talk about this matter on the phone. The CHS 

indicated that he had convinced the UC to meet with them as planned. The CHS asked MARTINEZ 

what he was going to say to the UC. MARTINEZ responded that he would tell the UC that he and 

the CHS "know what happened to the brother in Oregon .. . we don't work forthose people.» He told 

the CHS they had to be "strong aod fum and honest" with the UC, and "Insha' Allah, he will still 

want to go on with us." 

28. On November 30, 2010, MARTINEZ called the CHS two times inquiring whether 

the CHS had heard from the UC and if their meeting was still on. In the first phone 

MARTINEZ told the CHS he thought they should still meet with the UC and talk to him. In the 

second phone conversation, MARTINEZ asked the CHS how the UC had sounded on the phone and 

ifhe was upset. The CHS said that the UC did not want to talk on the phone, but agreed to meet on 

Thursday (1212). MARTINEZ said he was eager to meet with the UC because he wanted to tell him 

that he and the CHS were <5ust regular brothers .. . All we have is our word. Either he can believe 

it or he ". not gonns believe it ... we still have to come together in some type of conclusion to 

accomplish our goals," 

29. MARTINEZ and the CHS met with the UC on December 2, 2010. A traoscript has 

not yet been prepared; however, your affiant has reviewed the recording. Before the UC arrived, 

MARTINEZ told the CHS his belief that the United States was responsible for the 9111 attacks and 

had accused Muslims of committing the attacks as an excuse to fight wars against them. He stated 

that because the military in the United States and other cOlUltries were fighting against Muslims, 

soldiers were legitimate targets. 
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30. When the UC arrived, he said he would understand if MARTINEZ felt it was not the 

right path for him and did not want to go through with the operation. Later in the conversation, when 

both the CHS and the UC asked MARTINEZ again ifhe wanted to go forward, MARTINEZ laughed 

and said he felt that they were doing all this because he was the youngest of the three. MARTINEZ 

then said the following: 

I am sacrificing so much for Allah ... leaving my family, everybody behind, the way 
Ilive ... only way to victory ... only people upholding deen fighting for Muslim lands 
are mujahideen ... everyone has their own way to help deen ... one way is dawa 
[proselytize], one way is jihad ... the path I have chosen is jihad ... during Ramadan 
I prayed for Allah to open the door for jihad. 

31. The UC advised that he had a vehicle ready and would need three days to prepare 

everything for the operation. They discussed the details of obtaining the necessary materials for the 

bomb and how it would be operated with prepaid cell phones. The UC told MARTINEZ that ifhe 

wanted, the UC could show him the finaI steps of assembling the bomb. 

32. The UC told MARTINEZ to let him know, through the CHS, what date he wanted 

to do the operation and then they would meet the day before so the UC could show MARTINEZ how 

to work everything. The UC advised MARTINEZ that his contact had prepared MARTINEZ's 

passport (as part of their agreed overseas escape plan). MARTINEZ indicated that he wanted to have 

the passport sent to him ahead of time, and the UC agreed. MARTINEZ asked if they would leave 

right away or wait a few days. The UC reiterated they should wait a few days to avoid getting 

caught. MARTINEZ stated that he would like the UC to be ready by Tuesday (1217) to go forward, 

if possible. MARTINEZ also indicated that he would get on the internet to find out when the 

soldiers reported in and out of the building. He then said, "we have to go to the place to check it out 

-to see where we park." The uc told MARTINEZ tojusttellhim when he wants to do it and where 
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he wants to park the vehicle. 

33. After the UC left, MARTINEZ's mother called him while be was in the CHS's 

vehicle and talked to him for a very long time. After Martinez got off the pbone, be told the CHS 

that his mother was not bappy about bow he had chosen to live his life: 

not just being Muslim ... she wants me to be like everybody else, being in school, 
working ... for me it's different. I have this zeal fordeen and she doesn't lUlderstand 
that. My wife understands ... I told ber when [we 1 first married ... I told her I want 
to fight jihad '" she said sbe doesn't want to stop me ... sbe will support everything 
I want to do ... We all bave our own path ... all written for US .•• glad I am not like 
everyone else my age 21 - going out having fun, be in college, all that stuff. That's 
not me ... that not what Allah has in mind for me. 

34. MARTINEZ and the CHS met again later that evening to look at the parking area 

around the recruiting center. A transcript has not yet heen prepared; however, your affiant has 

reviewed the recording. According to the CHS, when they got there, MARTINEZ determined that 

the vehicle with the bomb should be parked on the left side of the building. He drew a map, which 

be gave to the CHS to give to the UC. 

35. On December 4, 2010, MARTINEZ and the CRS spoke over the phone. A transcript 

has not yet been prepared; however, your affiant has reviewed the recording. The CHS asked 

MARTINEZ how he was feeling about "all this." MARTINEZ replied that he did not know how he 

felt, but he knew be was "ready ... happy, anxious, just ready." The CHS told MARTINEZ that he 

wanted to made sure that MARTINEZ was not doing this because he felt "like someone pushing 

you." MARTINEZ replied, "r came to you about this, brother." 

36. On Decemher 7, 2010, MARTINEZ and theCHS met with the UC in a public lot not 

far from the location of the AImed Forces Career Center at 5439 Baltimore National Pike in 

Baltimore, Maryland. The center is a stand-alone building that is leased by an agency of the United 
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States and used as a recruiting center for various branches of the military. All three men got into a 

suv that the UC indicated would be used to transport the vehicle bomb to the recruiting station. 

The UC showed Martinez the device that would activate the bomb and explained to him how to use 

it. The UC also showed MARTINEZ the components for the bomb that were in the back of the 

SUV. MARTINEZ asked to see his passport, which the UC showed to him. The UC indicated that 

he would provide the passport to another "brother" who would get the appropriate travel visas. 

MARTINEZ pulled out his map of the recruiting center and told the UC where he believed it was 

best to park the SUV the next morning. MARTINEZ indicated that one of them should go inside 

first to ascertain who was there, after which they would park the SUV at the center. It was agreed 

that the UC would walk inside the buildiog and that MARTINEZ would drive the SUV to the center 

and park it. It was also agreed that all three men would drive separate vehicles, and the CHS would 

pick up MARTINEZ after the SUV was parked at the ceoter. MARTINEZ and the CHS would then 

drive to a vantage point where MARTINEZ would detonate the bomb. 

37. Since MARTINEZ had not driven a carin a while, he test drove the SUV around the 

parking lot to get comfortable with it. When the UC asked if MARTINEZ knew which way he 

wanted to face the SUV at the recruiting center, MARTINEZ pulled out his map again and showed 

the UC how he would park the vehicle at the recruiting center. The parties agreed that after the 

operation was over, they would not meet until Friday to arrange their getaway. 

38. On the moming of December 8, 2010, MARTINEZ met as planned with the UC and 

the CHS in the sarne public parking lot as December 7. MARTINEZ was observed by surveillance 

agents inspecting the components of the bomb in the back of the SUV. It appeared that he was 

arming the device as instructed by the DC the day before. MARTINEZ then proceeded to drive the 

17 



• .-:"f f"'\ 

1 V ~ ... • ., t' 1 ,. .... Jill 
~ •. UJ. m 

SUV, as planned, to the recruiting center, where he parked it in front of the building. MARTINEZ 

exited the SUV and got into the CHS' s vehicle, and they drove off to their vantage point not far from 

the recruiting center. The UC then called MARTINEZ to advise him that he had observed soldiers 

in the recruiting center. At that time, MARTINEZ attempted to detonate the device, which was, in 

fact, an inert bomb. He was immediately placed nnder arrest at that time. 

ll. Conclusion 

39. Based on the above information, your affiant believes there is probable cause to 

believe that the defendant, Antonio MARTINEZ, a/k/a Mobannnad Hussain, has committed the 

crimes of attempt to mnrder federal officers and employees, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 1114(3), 

and attempted use of a weapon of mass destruction against property owned, leased or used by the 

United States, in violation of 18 U.S.c. § 2332a(a)(3). 

Yonr affiant has signed this docnment nuder oath as to all assertions and allegations 

contained herein and states that its contents are true and correct to the best of his knowledge. 

E. Bender, Special Agent 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 

Sworn and subscribed to before me this _8 __ day of December. 2010. 

James K. Bredar 
United States Magistrate Judge 
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